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March 29, 2012

To the Citizens, Governor, and Members of the Legislature of the State of Montana:

In accordance with Title 17, Chapter 2, Part 110, Montana Code Annotated (MCA), we are pleased to submit the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the State of Montana for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
Responsibility for the accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness of the presentation rests with the
Department of Administration. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material
respects, and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds of the State of Montana. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
State's financial activities are included.

DESCRIPTION OF THE CAFR

This report and the accompanying financial statements and statistical tables were prepared in accordance with standards
set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

This CAFR is divided into three main sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The introductory section includes
this transmittal letter, an organization chart for the State, and a table of contents. The financial section contains
management’s discussion and analysis, the independent auditor's report, government-wide financial statements, fund
financial statements, notes to the financial statements, combining statements by fund type, and other schedules. The
statistical section includes financial, economic, and demographic data.

This report includes all funds of those entities that comprise the State of Montana (the primary government) and its
component units. The component units are entities that are legally separate from the State, but for which the State is
financially accountable, or whose relationship with the State is such that exclusion would cause the State's financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial
accountability. These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body; and (1) the State
is able to impose its will on that organization; or (2) there is the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the State. The following component units are included in
the State's financial reporting entity: Housing Authority, Facility Finance Authority, Montana State Fund (Old and New),
Montana State University, University of Montana, Public Employees Retirement Board, and Teachers Retirement
System. These component units are discretely presented in the State's financial statements.

The Montana State Fund (State Fund) component unit presentation included in this report differs from the statements
issued by that entity. We continue to include the Old Fund as part of the related statements because the Old Fund claims
are a legal liability of the State Fund. We confirmed this in a legal opinion provided by the department’s Chief Legal
Counsel. We also confirmed that this presentation is required through an inquiry to the Governmental Accounting and
Standards Board (GASB). We believe the State Fund should reissue the related statements to include the Old Fund as
required under GASB standards.

"AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER"
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PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Montana became the 41st state when it was admitted to the Union in 1889, 25 years after the attainment of territorial
status. While Montana has an area of 145,552 square miles, and is the nation’s fourth largest state, it is also one of the
most sparsely populated, with an estimated population of 989,415. Montana is vast, including rolling plains, the Northern
Rocky Mountains, all of Glacier National Park, four of the five entrances to Yellowstone National Park, wheat farms,
cattle ranches, tribal lands, and extensive natural resources.

In 1972, a constitutional convention convened, rewriting the State’s constitution and establishing the current
governmental structure. As shown in the organizational chart on page 13, state government is divided into three separate
branches: legislative, executive, and judicial. Montana’s Legislature consists of 50 senators and 100 representatives
elected from single-member districts. The Legislature meets in regular biennial sessions for 90 days in odd-numbered
years. Montana is governed by its constitution, and its laws are administered by its executive branch officers and various
boards and commissions. State government services provided to citizens include building and maintaining roads;
providing public safety, health, and environmental protection services to protect the general welfare of the State’s
citizens; helping adults, children, and families through difficult times such as abuse, divorce, illness, death, and
unemployment; fostering an attractive business climate to encourage economic growth; and protecting public lands and
natural resources for conservation and recreational activities. The State also provides significant financial support to its
higher education institutions, local governments, and school districts to help those entities meet the specific needs of
their constituents.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Montana’s primary economic base remains concentrated in agriculture, mining, manufacturing, and nonresident travel.
Montana’s economy appeared to experience a mild rebound from the recession, with growth of 2.2% through the end of
September 2011. Even though Montana’s economy experienced this mild recovery, overall unemployment has increased
in 2011 with June and September 2011 rates rising t07.5% and 7.7% respectively. All of Montana’s tax revenues
increased in fiscal year 2011. This increase was led by a significant rebound in general fund personal and corporate
income taxes of $98.5 and $29.5 million respectively. For a more in-depth analysis of the impact of the recovery on the
State’s financial position, the reader should refer to management’s discussion and analysis and the financial statements
contained in the CAFR.

Agriculture

Montana’s wheat yields decreased in 2011, with production projected to reach 178.3 million bushels, compared to the
record 2010 production level of 215.4 million bushels. Winter wheat yields decreased to 89.8 million bushels, 4% lower
than the 2010 level of 93.6 million bushels. Spring wheat yields reached 76.8 million bushels, down 27% from 2010.
Durum production is estimated at 11.7 million bushels, down 35% from 2010. The overall decrease in winter wheat
production resulted from lower acreage planted and harvested. An unusually cold wet spring contributed to the lower
acreage planted. Yields were down for all strains of wheat, and other grains, produced in Montana as a result of the less
than ideal weather conditions that continued throughout the spring and summer. Wheat prices have been higher in 2011,
ranging from the $5.50 to $8.50 per bushel range offsetting the impact of lower production.

Montana’s other major agricultural commodities include oats, barley, and cattle. Oat production in Montana decreased to
an estimated 1.0 million bushels in 2011, representing a 39% decrease from 2011 levels. Barley production is estimated
at 31.0 million bushels, which is 19% lower than last year. Montana’s cattle herd decreased in 2011 to an estimated 2.5
million head. Montana ranks eleventh in the U.S. cattle and calf industry. Montana’s 2010 receipts from cattle sales
exceeded $1.1 billion.

Manufacturing

When using the seasonally adjusted estimates, Montana’s manufacturing industry continued to decline in 2010. In 2010
employment in this industry, not including the self-employed, decreased from 19,100 to 17,900, or by 1.2%. This decline
in employment has continued into the first half of 2011 with June’s employment level ending at 16,000 for an additional
1.9% decrease. The value of production, within the manufacturing sector, rose an estimated $1.7 billion to approximately
$10 billion in 2010, primarily due to price increases. Overall workers earnings remained the same at an estimated $1
billion.



Montana’s timber harvest volume in 2010 increased to 321 million board feet, up slightly from 305 million board feet in
2009. This is the second lowest annual productions experienced in the state since 1945. Estimated total sales value of the
State’s primary wood and paper products in 2010 was $325 million, down about $225 million from 2009. The total wood
products industry estimated employment of 6,840 workers for 2010 was lower than the estimated 2009 level of 7,060.
The 2009 lumber production level was 480 million board feet, up from 415 million board feet in 2009. In January 2010
the State’s largest forest products industry employer, and user of wood fiber, Smurfit-Stone Container, closed.

Nonresident Travel

Nonresident travel to Montana in 2010 increased an estimated 5% to approximately 10.5 million visitors. Overall visitor
numbers for the national parks were higher. The visitor numbers for Yellowstone Park increased an estimated 9.1% from
3.3 million to 3.6 million visitors. Visits to Glacier Park increased from just over 2 million visitors to 2.3 million.
Nonresident travelers contribute to the tax base by paying the lodging tax; excise taxes, such as those on gasoline; and
indirectly, by supporting employment in industries that pay corporate taxes and whose workers pay income, property,
and other taxes. Estimated non-resident direct travel expenditures in Montana totaled $2.6 billion in 2010, representing
an increase of $0.3 billion. The estimated economic benefit of nonresident travel in Montana increased from $3.5 billion
for calendar year 2009 to $4.0 billion for 2010, representing a $506 million increase, 14.59%. For fiscal year 2011 the
initial reports indicate there will be an overall decrease in travel for the year, with travel returning to near 2009 levels.

Natural Resources/Mining

Montana’s Natural Resource/Mining Sector of the economy employed 7,500 workers at the end of calendar year 2010.
This represented a 9.6% decrease below the 8,300 workers employed at the end of December 2009. During calendar
year 2011 employment has rebounded in this sector of the economy with the June employment level reaching 8,100
employees. The various sectors included in this category are discussed in more detail below.

As of the end of calendar year 2008 an estimated 321 million barrels of proven oil reserves existed under Montana’s
land. These numbers have not been updated since prior to 2008, and do not reflect the projected additional reserves
existing in the Bakken and Tyler formations Montana shares with North and South Dakota. Reserves in these formations
can now be developed using new drilling technologies. In a 2008 press release the USGS estimated 3.65 billion barrels
of oil reserves exist in the Bakken formation alone. An update to the estimated reserves in the Bakken formation by the
US Geological Service (USGS) is scheduled to begin in 2011. Although there is an increase in estimated reserves under
Montana, in 2010 the State saw a continued reduction in production and exploration activity, with estimated crude oil
production for the state at 25.3 million barrels. This represents an 8.6% decrease from the 2009 production levels of 27.7
million barrels. The decline continued at a slower pace in fiscal year 2011 with a 5.4% reduction in production through
June, when compared to 2010 information for the same period. It is anticipated that the oil exploration and production in
Montana will increase significantly in the future as the new oil reserves are developed.

Historically, minerals mining has been a significant part of Montana’s economy. While there is no published data on
proven reserves for metals mining, Montana’s mines continue to produce copper, molybdenum, lead, zinc, palladium,
gold, silver, cobalt, nickel, chromate, platinum, and other metals. Montana also produces non-metal minerals such as
talc, limestone, and bentonite, garnets and sapphires.

Montana’s total coal reserves were estimated at 119,017 million short tons with recoverable reserves of 74,770 million
short tons in 2009. This represents 24% of the total, and 29% of the recoverable, reserves in the U.S. Of these reserves
855 million short tons of coal, 8% of the US total, are located at producing mine sites. During 2010, Montana’s coal
production increased to 44,732 thousand short tons (13.3%).

Secondary Economic Sectors

The recession in Montana primarily impacted the secondary and tertiary sectors (Construction, Trade/Transportation
/Utilities, Information, Financial Activities, Professional and Business Services, Education and Health Services, Other
services, and Government) of the economy. The overall decrease in these sectors slowed significantly in 2011 with a
total decrease in employment of 4,800 jobs, moving from 754,100 in 2009 to 749,300 in 2010. The decrease in the
constructions sector slowed, with 2,400 fewer jobs or 10.5% less. This compares with the 6,800 job decrease or -22.9%
less in the construction sector for 2009. An additional factor affecting the employment picture in Montana is the
employment of a significant number of construction workers from Montana in the North Dakota oil fields. This is not
directly reflected in the analysis presented above.



MAJOR INITTIATIVES AND LONG TERM OUTLOOK

The 2011 Legislature completed work and adjourned in late April 2011. Upon adjournment, it was anticipated that for
the biennium, general fund revenue collections would be approximately $3,625 million while general fund expenditures
would be approximately $3,716 million, thereby leaving an estimated general fund balance of approximately $150
million at the end of fiscal year 2013.

The 2013 biennium budget predominantly funds existing core services (i.e. health and human services, corrections, and
education) at estimated caseload, population, and enrollment levels.

The following are other financial highlights of the 2013 biennium budget, as approved by the 2011 Legislature:

1. The 2011 Legislature reduced the class 8 (business equipment) property tax rate (SB 372). In addition to
reducing tax liability for individuals and businesses, the bill also provides for full reimbursement, from the
general fund, for the reduction in tax base caused by this bill to local governments and tax increment finance
districts through entitlement share payments; school districts through school block grant payments; and the
university system.

2. The Legislature and Governor passed and approved HB 334, a bill to reform the current worker‘s compensation
program in Montana. This legislation has a number of provisions that, in aggregate, are expected to create a
significant net reduction in the cost of the overall Montana workers compensation system.

3. The Legislature and Governor passed and approved HB 49 which authorized the sale of $16.15 million in State
general obligation bonds if and when the water compact with the Blackfeet Tribe is ratified by the Tribe and
U.S. Congress. No other general obligation debt was approved, although there remains previously authorized
general obligation debt that could be issued.

4. 5% expenditure reduction plans required for consideration per 17-7-111, MCA were adopted by the Legislature.
As a result, both general fund and state special expenditures were reduced accordingly.

5. The Legislature did not pass a state employee pay plan.

One-time general fund cash investments in the 2013 biennium include:

University system units and research - $12.7 million

Economic Development and high performance computing at the Department of Commerce - $4.1 million
Area Agencies on Aging - $3.0 million

Multi-district Cooperatives in K-12 education - $1.0 million

At the close of fiscal year 2011, the General Fund unassigned fund balance increased by $102.9 million (43.0%). Total
fund balance increased by $42.4 million (13.0%). The budgets adopted by the 62™ legislature, as discussed above,
anticipated an overall decrease in fund balance. This increased fund balance left Montana in much better financial
condition than many other states in the US. Increased revenues combined with budgetary constraints, required as a result
of the lower projected general fund balance during fiscal year 2011, contributed to the increase in total fund balance. The
increase in unassigned fund balance was primarily caused by an assignment for the estimated “spend—down” of fund
balance required under the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54, as discussed in more
detail below. The revenue increase was primarily driven by an increase in corporate and personal income taxes.

Both the increased revenue and related expenditure activity are discussed in more detail in the management discussion
and analysis included in this report.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Montana's Statewide Budgeting, Accounting, and Human Resource System (SABHRS) is a centrally maintained, fully
computerized, double-entry accounting system. SABHRS records are computer-edited.

Management of the State is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure
that the assets of the State are protected from loss or misuse, and that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. In developing and
evaluating the State's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of internal accounting controls. Internal



accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the above objectives are met.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and that the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary restrictions are imposed via appropriations approved by the Legislature or established administratively as
provided for by state law. Appropriations are required by state law for the general, state and federal special revenue, and
capital projects funds. The level of budgetary control is generally established by fund. SABHRS is designed to provide
budgetary control by preventing spending in excess of legislative and administrative authority and/or available cash.
SABHRS also provides for encumbrance accounting as a technique for accomplishing budgetary control.

General Fund Balance

The total fund balance of the General Fund was reported at $369.4 million at June 30, 2011. Of this fund balance $2.9
million is non-spendable. The remaining $366.5 million is spendable with $24.6 million assigned and $341.9 million
unassigned. This compares to a combined unassigned and assigned, spendable, fund balance of $322.4 million at June
30, 2010. The $322.4 million fiscal year 2010 fund balance consisted of $83.3 million assigned and $239.1 million
unassigned. The significant decrease in assigned fund balance resulted because we anticipated a spend-down of general
fund balance for fiscal year 2011, when comparing revenues to expenditures, when the financial statements were
prepared for fiscal year 2010. We do not anticipate a spend-down of fund balance for fiscal year 2012, as a result the
related assignment of fund balance was not reported for fiscal year 2011.

Other Post Employment Benefits - Implied Rate Subsidy Liability

The State of Montana reported the “implied rate subsidy” liability, required under the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, in this financial report and the related financial statements. Although the
State reported this liability, and related expenses and expenditures, the State does not agree that this represents a legal
liability and further believes that the presentation of this activity in the financial statements will eventually be misleading
to the users of the statements.

The State plans to continue funding the employee health insurance plan on a “pay as you go” basis, and does not intend
to fund this liability. Because the State is not funding this liability, it will increase in 1/30™ increments, plus interest, and
within a few years, the financial statements will reflect the impact of a very large “implied rate subsidy” liability that
does not have legal substance. The total actuarially accrued liability, which, absent a change in position by GASB, will
be recorded on the State accounting system over the next 26 years, is estimated at $162.7 and $77.9 million for the State
and MUS systems, respectively. Accrued interest will further inflate this over time. We submitted a request to have
GASB reconsider the requirement to report the implied rate subsidy. GASB refused to revisit this issue. A copy of the
letter to GASB providing the our concerns with the implied rate subsidy reporting, required under GASB Statement No.
45, is available upon request.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The financial statements contained in Montana's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report were audited by the State’s
Legislative Audit Division (LAD). The Legislative Auditor is appointed by, and reports to, the Legislative Audit
Committee. The Deputy Legislative Auditor issued a qualified opinion on the State's financial statements for fiscal year
2011. The qualified opinion is based on how Montana State Fund (State Fund) is presented within this report in regards
to the Old Fund claims. In the LAD opinion, Old Fund should no longer be part of the State Fund component unit for
financial reporting purposes and the primary government is legally obligated to pay the remaining liabilities of Old Fund.

Pursuant to advice received from the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the Old Fund claims should
be reported by the party legally obligated to pay them. We confirmed that the legal liability remained with the State
Fund in a legal opinion issued by the Department of Administration (DOA) Chief Legal Counsel and a Letter of Advice
from Montana’s Attorney General (AG).

State Fund is defined in statute as a single separate legal entity with a contractual relationship to its claimants. State

Fund is a single legal entity that meets GASB 14 requirements to be reported as a discretely presented component unit of
the State of Montana.
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Per 39-71-2321 MCA, State Fund is required to track the Old Fund and New Fund claims separately. The account name
“Old Fund” is used to represent claims that occurred before July 1, 1990 and the account name “New Fund” is used to
represent claims that occurred beginning July 1, 1990. There is not a legal distinction between “Old Fund” and “New
Fund”.

The General Fund is routinely required to transfer money to numerous accounts each year. These transfers are
considered to be interfund transfers. The General Fund is not required to report a legal liability for those transfers.

The following excerpts are from the AG’s Letter of Advice:

...The law governing assets and liabilities of the Old Fund clearly provides that the legislature
intended for the State Fund to “assume liability for all outstanding claims and indebtedness of the
previously existing state fund.” Mont. Code Ann. § 39-71-2319. In addition to designating the State
Fund as the entity legally liable for outstanding claims and indebtedness of the Old Fund, the
Legislature created a separate payment structure and a separate funding source for payment for claims
of injury occurring before July 1, 1990 (claims against the Old Fund) and for those claims occurring on
or after July 1, 1990 (claims against the State Fund). The legislature also provided for contingency
funding in the event that revenue from the Old Fund liability tax did not cover the cost of claims.
Section 39-71-2352(6) provides for that contingency, it states “[i]f in any fiscal year after the old fund
liability tax is terminated claims for injuries resulting from accidents that occurred before July 1, 1990,
are not adequately funded, any amount necessary to pay claims for injuries resulting from accidents
that occurred before July 1, 1990, must be transferred from the general fund to the fund provided for
in 39-71-2321.” (Emphasis added)][...].

[T]he State Fund not the State of Montana remains the entity legally liable for such claims. This
conclusion is supported both by the plain language of section 39-71-2319 and the contingency
provision in section 39-71-2352(6). By providing for a transfer from the general fund to the Old Fund
account, the Legislature created a payment structure that reflects the intent expressly stated in section
39-71-2319, “the State Fund shall assume liability for all outstanding claims and indebtedness of the
previously existing state fund.” [...] The State Fund’s legal liability did not terminate when the Old
Fund liability tax reserves were depleted. The entity responsible for payment of claims — the State
Fund — remains the same. It is the funding source for payment of those claims that has changed.

Additionally, we reported an obligation to the State Fund from the General Fund to provide resources to pay the claims,
even though this is not clearly required under current reporting standards. In our opinion this provides valuable
information to the financial statement users. Because this is not a long-term liability for the State primary government, as
currently defined under GAAP, we did not include this with the long term debt as recommended by LAD, but instead
presented this on a separate line. We believe this distinction is necessary for the users of the financial statements.

It is our opinion that the Old Fund reporting contained in this report is in accordance with generally accepted
governmental accounting principles and the related audit opinion, as required by generally accepted auditing standards,
should be unqualified.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State of Montana for its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This was the twenty third year that the State received this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR, whose contents conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.
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LEGISLATIVE AUDIT DIVISION

Tori Hunthausen, Legislative Auditor
Deborah F. Butler, Legal Counsel

Deputy Legislative Auditors:
Cindy Jorgenson
Angie Grove

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Legislative Audit Committee
of the Montana State Legislature:

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Montana, as of and for the year ended June
30, 2011, which collectively comprise the state’s basic financial statements, as follows:

Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Activities

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets — Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Fiduciary Funds

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets — Fiduciary Funds

Combining Statement of Net Assets — Component Units

Combining Statement of Activities — Component Units

These financial statements are the responsibility of the state of Montana’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Montana State University component units and the University
of Montana component units, which represent 10.1, 25.0, and 6.2 percent, respectively, of the assets,
net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those financial
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our
opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the university component units, are based
on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Sandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the university component units were not
audited in accordance with Government Auditing Sandards. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as

Room 160 - State Capitol Building - P.O. Box 201705 - Helena, MT - 59620-1705
Phone (406) 444-3122 - FAX (406) 444-9784 - E-Mail lad@mt.gov

http://leg.mt.gov/audit
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well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Management has reported the Old Fund and the New Fund as the Montana State Fund component
unit. The Old Fund is no longer part of the Montana State Fund component unit for financial
reporting purposes because Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires the primary
government to report the activity of the Old Fund since it is now legally obligated to pay the
remaining liabilities. In fiscal year 2010-11 the Old Fund’s resources were depleted and the General
Fund provided the resources to pay approximately $50,000 in claims. Under provisions of state law,
the General Fund has assumed the remaining estimated $64.6 million in workers’ compensation
claim liabilities of the Old Fund, making it a general long-term debt of the primary government.
GAAP requires the state to report the debt of a component unit as a liability if it is legally obligated
to repay it. The General Fund cannot avoid sacrificing resources for the purpose of repaying the Old
Fund claims. The Old Fund is improperly presented in a separate column or line item as part of the
Montana State Fund component unit on the Statement of Activities, Combining Statement of Net
Assets — Component Units, and Combining Statement of Activities — Component Units. The
following table identifies the resulting misstatements (in thousands) on the Basic Financial
Statements.

Statement of Net Assets Over (Under) stated
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Column

Estimated Future Claim Contribution to Component Units $64,621
Long-Term Liabilities (Due within One Year) ($9,888)
Long-Term Liabilities (Due in More than One Year) ($54,733)
Component Units Column

Estimated Future Claim Contribution From Primary Government $64,621
Long-Term Liabilities (Due within One Year) $9,888
Long-Term Liabilities (Due in More than One Year) $54,733

Statement of Activities
Expenses Column

Governmental Activities: General Government $64,621
Component Units Column
Payment from State of Montana $64,621

Combining Statement of Net Assets — Component Units
Montana State Fund (Old Fund) Column

Estimated Future Claim Contribution from Primary Government $64,621
Long-Term Liabilities (Due within One Year) $9,888
Long-Term Liabilities (Due in More than One Year) $54,733

Combining Statement of Activities — Component Units
Montana State Fund (Old Fund) Column
Payment from State of Montana $64,621
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Other amounts presented for the Old Fund and not listed above should be reported in the General
Fund. Additionally, Notes 1, 8, and 11 do not disclose the change in reporting entity and the state’s
resulting general obligation debt for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, except for the reporting of Old
Fund activity as described in the previous paragraph, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, and the General Fund of the state of
Montana, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In addition, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities; the state special
revenue, the federal special revenue, the land grant, the coal severance tax, Unemployment
Insurance, and Economic Development Bonds major funds; and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of Montana, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison Schedule, the Pension Plan
Information, and the Other Post Employment Benefits Plan Information are not a required part of
the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of
the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the state of Montana’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining statements, and statistical section listed in the table of contents are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections
listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

At July 1, 2011, the Public Employees’ Retirement System — Defined Benefit Retirement Plan,
Game Wardens’ and Peace Officers’, Highway Patrol Officers’, Sheriffs’, and Teachers’ retirement
systems were not actuarially sound. The Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability amortization period
is infinite for the Public Employees’ Retirement System — Defined Benefit Retirement Plan, Game
Wardens’ and Peace Officers’, and Sheriffs’ retirement systems. The amortization period for the
Highway Patrol Officers’ Retirement System is 48.2 years. The amortization period for the
Teachers’ retirement system is 71 years. The maximum allowable amortization period is 30 years.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated March 19,
2012, on our consideration of the state of Montana’s internal control over financial reporting and on
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our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sandards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit. It is included in the Legislative Auditor’s
separately issued report (11-01A) on the state’s basic financial statements.

Respectfully submitted,
/s/ Cindy Jorgenson
Cindy Jorgenson, CPA

Deputy Legislative Auditor
March 19, 2012
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

Management of the State of Montana provides this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the State of Montana’s basic
financial statements included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). This narrative overview and analysis
of the financial activities of the State of Montana is for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider
this information in conjunction with the additional information that is furnished in the State’s financial statements, which
follow.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Government-wide Highlights

The assets of the State exceeded its liabilities at the end of fiscal year 2011 by $7.4 billion (reported as net assets) compared
with $6.8 billion at the end of fiscal year 2010. Of this amount, $889.4 million (reported as unrestricted net assets) may be
used to meet the government’s general obligations to citizens and creditors. Component units reported net assets of $1500.3
million compared with $1,311.3 million at fiscal year-end 2010. These are discussed in more detail in the financial statement
overview below.

Fund Highlights

As of the close of fiscal year 2011, the State’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $3.8 billion
compared with $3.7 billion at fiscal year 2010. Of this amount, $1.3 billion is not in spendable form, primarily as permanent
fund principle, and $2.5 billion is available for spending. The $2.5 billion fund balance in spendable form is segregated by
constraint as follows: $1.1 billion restricted, $1.0 billion committed, $52.3 million assigned and $340 million unassigned,
primarily in the General Fund. These changes are discussed in more detail in the financial analysis of the State’s major funds
presented below.

The State’s business-type activity funds reported net assets at the close of fiscal year 2011 in the amount of $186.7 million
compared with the fiscal year-end 2010 net assets of $194.7 million. Of the business-type activity fund equity $15.6 million
was invested in capital assets, net of related debt. $171.1 million of net assets was in spendable form with $12.3 million
unrestricted and $158.8 million restricted to expenditure for a specific purpose. This represents a $9.5 million (5.3%)
decrease in spendable net assets from the fiscal year-end 2010 balance of $180.2 million. These changes are discussed in
more detail in the financial analysis of the State’s major funds presented below.

Long-term Debt
The State’s total bonds and notes payable for governmental activities decreased by $2.7 million, from $360.9 million in fiscal
year 2010 to $358.2 million (0.7%) in fiscal year 2011.

Business-type activities reported bonds and notes payable of $0.2 million at fiscal year-end 2011. This represents a decrease
of $0.2 million (50.0%) over the fiscal year-end 2011 reported amount of $0.4 million. For details relating to the states long
term debt see footnote 11.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the State of Montana’s basic financial statements. The
State’s basic financial statements include three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial
statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. The report also contains additional required supplementary information
(budgetary schedules and other post employment benefits plan information). These components are described below:

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include two kinds of financial statements that present different views of the State — the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements and combining major component unit financial
statements. These financial statements also include the notes to the financial statements that explain some of the information
in the financial statements and provide more detail.
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the State’s operations in a manner similar to a private-
sector business. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the State’s financial position, which
assists in assessing the State’s economic condition at the end of the fiscal year. These are prepared using the flow of
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This basically means they follow methods that
are similar to those used by most businesses, including all revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal year, even if cash
involved has not been received or paid. The government-wide financial statements include two statements.

The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the government’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as “net assets.” Over time, increases or decreases in the State’s net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the State is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless
of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not
result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). This
statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the State.

Both of the above financial statements have separate sections for three different types of state programs or activities. These
three types of activities are as follow:

Governmental Activities — The activities in this section are mostly supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues
(federal grants). Most services normally associated with state government fall into this category, including education (support
for both K-12 public schools and higher education), general government, health services, legal and judiciary services,
museums, natural resources, public safety and defense, regulatory services, social services, and transportation.

Business-type Activities — These functions are normally intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges to external users of goods and services. The major business-type activities of the State include the
Unemployment Insurance Fund and the Economic Development Bond Program which assists Montana’s small businesses
and local governments in obtaining long-term, fixed-rate financing through private Montana lending institutions.

Discretely Presented Component Units — These are operations for which the State has financial accountability, but they have
certain independent qualities as well. In order to be considered component units these entities must be legally separate to the
extent that they may sue, or be sued, in their own right. For the most part, these entities operate similarly to private sector
businesses and the business-type activities described above. The State has four authorities and two universities that are
reported as discretely presented component units of the State.

Fund Financial Statements (Reporting the State’s Major Funds)

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The State, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the State government, reporting the State’s operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements. All of the funds can be divided into three categories. It is important to note that
these fund categories use different accounting approaches and should be interpreted differently. The three categories of funds
are as follows:

Governmental Funds Financial Statements — Most of the basic services provided by the State are financed through
governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, the
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources. They also focus on
the balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the
government’s near-term financing requirements. This approach is known as using the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. These statements provide a detailed short-term view of the
State’s finances that assists in determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available to meet the current
needs of the State.

The State has five governmental funds that are considered major funds for presentation purposes. Each major fund is
presented in a separate column in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
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expenditures, and changes in fund balances. The State’s five major governmental funds are the General Fund, the State
Special Revenue Fund, the Federal Special Revenue Fund, the Coal Severance Tax Fund, and the Land Grant Fund.

Proprietary Funds Financial Statements — When the State charges customers for the service it provides, whether to outside
customers or to other agencies within the State, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds
(enterprise and internal service) utilize full accrual accounting, the same method used by private sector businesses. Enterprise
funds report activities that provide supplies and services to the general public. An example is the State Lottery. An internal
service fund reports activities that provide supplies and services for the State’s other programs and activities such as the
Motor Pool.

Fiduciary Funds — These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside state government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of these funds are not
available to support the State’s own programs. Fiduciary funds use the full accrual basis of accounting. A retirement fund is
an example of a fiduciary fund.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide
and the fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the component
unit financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information. This section contains a
budgetary comparison schedule, which includes the reconciliation between the statutory fund balance for budgetary purposes
and the fund balance for the General Fund, as presented in the governmental fund financial statements, the schedule of
funding progress for the pension plans, and other post employment benefits plan information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Montana’s overall financial position improved from the last fiscal year. This improvement resulted from a mild economic
recovery within the State.

Net Assets

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The State’s
combined net assets (government and business-type activities) totaled $7.6 billion at the end of fiscal year 2011. Net assets of
the governmental activities increased $406.6 million (5.9%), and business-type activities had a $8.1 million (4.1%) decrease.
These changes are explained in detail in the major fund analysis below

A portion of the State’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets such as land, buildings, equipment and
infrastructure (roads, bridges, and other immovable assets) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The State uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the State’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the State’s net assets represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be

used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the State’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. Internally imposed designations of resources are not presented as restricted net assets.

23



Montana Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

At the end of the current fiscal year, the State was able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets,
both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

Net Assets
As of Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011
Current and other assets $4,678,781 $4,889,350 $326,068 $319,280  $5,004,849  $5,208,630
Capital assets 4,149,204 4,455,465 14,534 15,963 4,163,738 4,471,428
Total assets 8,827,985 9,344,815 340,602 335,243 9,168,587 9,680,058
Long-term liabilities 879,029 861,287 10,577 12,276 889,606 873,563
Other liabilities 1,007,219 1,135,189 135,305 136,302 1,142,524 1,271,491
Total liabilities 1,886,248 1,996,476 145,882 148,578 2,032,130 2,145,054
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 3,874,920 4,178,343 14,534 15,963 3,889,454 4,194,306
Restricted 1,983,143 2,292,979 159,335 158,735 2,142,478 2,451,714
Unrestricted 1,083,674 877,017 20,851 11,967 1,104,525 888,984
Total net assets $6,941,737  $7,348,339  $194,720 $186,665 $7,136,457 $7,535,004
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The following condensed financial information was derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities, and
reflects how the State’s net assets changed during the fiscal year:

Changes in Net Assets
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011
Revenues:
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 612,041 $ 551,722 $ 309,975 $ 362,776 $ 922,016 $ 914,498
Operating grants 1,985,977 1,962,876 226,049 168,222 2,212,026 2,131,098
Capital grants 510,996 537,194 3,174 281 514,170 537,475
General revenues
Taxes 1,817,564 1,997,392 25,017 21,797 1,842,581 2,019,189
Other 258,627 200,294 4,622 5,306 263,249 205,600
Total revenues 5,185,205 5,249,478 568,837 558,382 5,754,042 5,807,860
Expenses:
General government 774,881 752,565 774,881 752,565
Public safety/corrections 342,803 308,593 342,803 308,593
Transportation 320,085 390,523 320,085 390,523
Health/social services 1,677,261 1,765,871 1,677,261 1,765,871
Educational/cultural 1,179,788 1,209,969 1,179,788 1,209,969
Resource/rec/environ 318,300 318,954 318,300 318,954
Principal on long-term debt - 6 6
Interest on long-term debt 17,692 16,314 17,692 16,314
Unemployment Insurance 354,794 278,086 354,794 278,086
Liquor Stores 61,569 63,573 61,569 63,573
State Lottery 36,365 35,481 36,365 35,481
Economic Dev Bonds 2,167 1,126 2,167 1,126
Hail Insurance 6,238 8,379 6,238 8,379
Gen Govt Services 62,796 63,003 62,796 63,003
Prison Funds 6,463 6,149 6,463 6,149
MUS Group Insurance 72,606 63,501 72,606 63,501
MUS Workers Comp 3,900 4,232 3,900 4,232
Total expenses 4,630,810 4,762,795 606,898 523,530 5,237,708 5,286,325
Increase (decrease) in net
assets before transfers 554,395 486,683 (38,061) 34,852 516,334 521,535
Transfers 42,486 40,547 (42,486) (40,547) - -
Change in net assets 596,881 527,230 (80,547) (5,695) 516,334 521,353
Net assets, beg of year
(restated) 6,344,856 6,821,109 275,267 192,360 6,620,123 7,013,469
Net assets, end of year $6,941,737 $7,348,339 $ 194,720 $ 186,665 $7,136,457 $7,535,004
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Governmental Activities
The following chart depicts revenues of the governmental activities for the fiscal year:

Revenues - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
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The following chart depicts expenses of the governmental activities for the fiscal year:

Expenses - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
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Business-type Activities
The following chart depicts revenues of the business-type activities for the fiscal year:

Revenues - Business-type Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
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The following chart depicts expenses of the business-type activities for the fiscal year:

Expenses - Business-type Activities
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S MAJOR FUNDS

As the State completed the year, its governmental funds reported fund balances of $3.8 billion. Of this total amount,
$2.50 billion (66%) constitutes spendable fund balance and $1.33 billion (35%) is classified as non-spendable. The
spendable fund balance is further classified as restricted, $1,106 million (44.2%), committed, $1,005 million (40.1%),
assigned, $52 million (2.1%), and unassigned, $340 million (13.6%). The preceding percentages are calculated on total
spendable fund balance. The analysis of the following major funds, providing the majority of the net assets for the
government, follows.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the State. At the end of the current fiscal year, combined unassigned and
assigned (spendable) fund balance of the General Fund was $366.5 million. This represents 14.6% of the 2.5 billion
spendable governmental fund balances for all governmental funds. The ending General Fund unassigned fund balance
was $114.6 million higher than the anticipated $227.3 million unassigned fund balance estimated by the 62™ Legislature.
Unassigned fund balance increased by $102.8 million primarily when compared to the previously reported fund balance
of $239.0 million. This increase was primarily the result of a decrease in the estimated spend down of fund balance for
subsequent fiscal year expenditures from $71.4 million to $0.00, and increased income, corporate and natural resource
tax revenues, resulting from a modest economic recovery. General Fund expenditures for fiscal year 2011 increased by
$63.5 million (4.0%). This increase in expenditures primarily occurred in the Health and Human Services and
Educational/Cultural functions. The increased revenues more than offset the rise in expenditures. The changes in both
expenditures and revenues are discussed in detail below.

Higher Revenues Than Anticipated — Total General Fund revenues and transfers in were $1,783.0 million for fiscal year
2011. This was $152.6 million (9.4%) more than fiscal year 2010, and $76.3 million (4.5%) more than what was
projected for fiscal year 2011 by the legislature. The increase in revenue from fiscal year 2010 to fiscal year 2011 was
primarily in individual and corporate income and natural resource taxes. The overall national recovery, combined with
the record calendar year 2010 crop production along with higher farm commodity prices, contributed to the income and
corporate tax increases. Higher natural resource prices were the underlying reason for the natural resource tax revenue
increase.

General Fund Expenditure Budget Reversions

Much of the unspent funds were attributable to Governor’s reductions per 17-7-140, MCA ($28.3 million which affected
most agencies statewide), the Otter Creek Bonus Payment ($82 million affecting OPI), and HB 645 ($24.2 million
statewide but mostly impacting Health and Human Services). The major reversions are discussed in more detail below.

Public Health & Human Services Reversions

The Department of Public Health and Human Services (DPHHS) has unspent appropriation authority of nearly $42
million for 2011. Authority for these unspent appropriations comes from a combination of the General Appropriations
Act, House Bill (HB) 2 & 13, the Montana Reinvestment Act, HB645, planned reversions attributable to the Federal
Medicaid Match (FMAP) enhancement, and the Governor’s Reductions per 17-7-140, MCA. Significant portions of
this unspent appropriation can be attributed to the following:

e Medicaid Benefits and Administration (primarily HB 645) — $13.8 million.

e Restricted fund balances (excluding Medicaid)—$0.4 million.

e Governor’s 17-7-140, MCA, Reductions ($14.2 million) - These reductions included a variety of operational,
personal services, provider rate increases and program efficiencies.

The balance of the Department’s unspent appropriation (approximately $14 million) was attributable to planned
reversions attributable to the enhanced FMAP rate per the JOBS Bill and other miscellaneous reversions across account

types.

Office of Public Instruction Reversions

The Office of Public Instruction reverted approximately $82 million of FY 2011 appropriations. The reversion is K-12
Base Aid due to the one-time-only Otter Creek bonus payment that went to the Guarantee Account offsetting the General
Fund appropriation. K-12 Base Aid funding is biennial funding that rolled into FY 2011 at the end of FY 2010 and was
then reverted at the end of FY 2011.
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Higher General Fund Expenditures — General Fund expenditures increased by $63.5 million (4.0%). The major factor
behind this increase was the educational funding provided by the Otter Creek bonus payment. This payment directly
reduced General Fund educational expenditures in 2010. The funding of these educational expenditures at a normal level
led to an overall increase in general Fund Expenditures. Additionally Medicaid payments were greater as a result of
increased caseloads.

State Special Revenue Fund

At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the State Special Revenue Fund was $1.6 billion. Fund balance
increased during the fiscal year by $80.6 million (5.3%). This increase was caused by a combination of lower: revenues
collections, expenditure levels, and transfers in combined with a significant prior period adjustment. These changes are
discussed in detail below. Although revenues and transfers in decreased significantly, the transfers in of $166.3 million,
combined with decreased expenditures more than offset the decrease in revenues, resulting in the overall increased fund
balance.

Lower State Special Revenue Fund Revenues — Overall revenues decreased by $57.6 million. A discussion of the causes
for the major changes follows:

e Charges for services/fines/forfeits/settlements decreased by $50.4 million (35.3%) because the state received
significantly less in pollution/wildlife remediation settlement payments in 2011. In 2011 the State received one
major settlement relating to the Flying J Facility of $2.4 million compared to $42.5 million of mitigation
payments in fiscal year 2010.

e Investment earnings decreased by $18.7 million (35.9%) primarily as the result of the extremely low Short
Term Investment Pool (STIP) earnings during fiscal year 2011.

e Federal indirect cost recoveries decreased by $12.9 million (21.8%). $12.6 million of this decrease related to
reduced federal indirect cost recoveries in the Highway account resulting from a reduced indirect cost rate (from
17.48% to 13.35%) and the continued impact of ARRA expenditures on which the State did not recover indirect
costs.

Lower State Special Revenue Fund Transfers In - Transfers in decreased significantly in 2011 because similar,
significant, one time only transfers that occurred in 2010 (Otter Creek, $81.5 million), were not repeated and the ARRA
transfers were reduced in 2011, resulting in a $152.7 (47.9%) million decrease in transfers-in for the year. As noted
above the transfers in of $166.3 million more than offset the decreased revenue in the fund resulting in the higher net
asset balance at year end.

Lower State Special Revenue Fund Expenditures - Expenditures within the State Special Revenue Fund decreased by
$72.7 million (6.8%). The decrease was primarily in Education/Cultural Function. Spending in this function decreased
$73.8 million because expenditures funded by the Otter Creek coal payment of $81.5 million in 2010, were instead made
by the General Fund in 2011.

Permanent Fund Reclassifications — Prior Period Adjustments increased by $56.1 million. As explained in Note 2 the
State reclassified non-major permanent funds, established by State Legislative action, as Special Revenue Funds.
Additional clarification provided by GASB staff, in related National Association of State Controllers meetings, resulted
in related permanent fund classification changes of $59.2 million.

Federal Special Revenue Fund

Fund balance in the Federal Special Revenue Fund increased by $3.0 million (9.2%) to $35.1 million. Revenues
increased by $77.3 million (3.3%), expenditures increased by $107.3 million (4.8%) and transfers out decreased by $21.9
million (32.5%). Because most federal programs are expenditure-driven, a direct correlation normally exists between
revenues/transfers in and expenditures/transfers out. The increased expenditure level was offset by a partially offset by
decrease in transfers out resulting in the net increase in overall fund balance. Programs such as Guaranteed Student Loan,
Livestock Shell/Egg and some within the Fish Wildlife and Parks and Crime Control agencies are allowed to carry assets
in their federal entities, creating a normal overall positive balance for the fund as a whole. The federal revenue and
expenditure/transfer out increases resulted from the following:

e The Medicaid expenditures increased in both the General and Federal Funds during fiscal year 2011 resulting in
additional expenditures and revenues of $28.4 million in the Federal Fund. This increase was driven by both
caseload increases and continuation of the ARRA federal matching increases;

e Additional Food Stamps were distributed resulting in increased program expenditures of $21.2 million;

e Highway construction revenues funded by ARRA increased by $18.6 million;
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e  Education stabilization funding increased by $9.1 million;

e Transportation noncapital expenditures relating to highway construction increased by $78.2 million as the result
of increased noncapital asset expenditure activity, primarily grants to local governments and projects under the
capitalization threshold, funded through ARRA and Federal Highway reimbursements. 2010 also included an
unusually high amount of capitalized infrastructure assets resulting in a much lower than normal expenditure
level for the year.

e The decrease in capital outlay of $72.3 million directly relate to the changes in the Transportation function
discussed above.

e The decrease in transfers out primarily related to ARRA funded waste and drinking water projects.

Coal Severance Tax Permanent Fund

Revenue in the Coal Severance Tax Permanent Fund decreased by $21.6 million (21.3%). Coal tax revenues increased
$7.6 million (7.6%) due to increased coal production within the state, while investment earnings decreased $29.4 million
(37.0%). The increased coal demand resulted from the national and world-wide economic recovery that began in 2010.
The revenues relating to appreciation of investments decreased by $16.8 million (76.7%) as the result of lower projected
growth in investment values at the end of the fiscal year, partially offsetting the increased coal tax revenues. Although
there were significant changes in the revenues earned within the fund, net assets increased by $45.8 million (5.3%). By
definition, permanent fund transfers out cannot exceed the revenues earned.

Land Grant Permanent Fund

Fund balance in the Land Grant Permanent Fund increased by $17.4 million (3.5%). Within this fund, investment
earnings decreased by $23.5 million (44.0%). This investment revenue decrease was primarily the result of the decrease
in investment appreciation of $21.9 million (76.7%) as discussed above. The $73.4 million decrease in royalties was
primarily the result of the Otter Creek coal bonus payment of $81.5 million that flowed through this fund in 2010.
Increased oil lease and coal royalties partially offset this decrease. The increase oil lease activity results from the leases
that will be required to develop the projected extensive oil reserves, similar to those currently being developed in north
Dakota, that exist under eastern and central Montana.

Transfers out decreased by 86.6 million (53.4%) primarily because the State did not have transfers similar to that caused
by the 2010, $81.5 million, Otter Creek bonus payment, discussed above, that flowed through to the State Special
Revenue fund.

Unemployment Insurance Enterprise Fund

Net assets restricted for unemployment compensation decreased by $15.7 million (13.5%). This decrease was
significantly less than the $79.4 million experienced in 2010. This net asset decrease reflects the impact of continued
unemployment throughout fiscal year 2011. Overall unemployment rose from 7.3% in July, 2010, to 7.5% in July 2011.
During fiscal year 2011 two unemployment rate increases were implemented resulting in increased premiums revenues
of $47.9 million (53.6%). The Federal additional benefits program was discontinued in 2011 contributing to a decrease in
grant revenue of $51.2 million (29.1%) and benefit payments of $77.2 million (21.8%). Even though revenues increased
and benefit payments decreased the overall expenditures were greater than the revenues collected resulting the net asset
decrease.

Economic Development Bonds Enterprise Fund

Net assets increased by $0.5 million (8.5%) in fiscal year 2011. The fund’s net assets change results primarily from
decreased interest paid during 2011. The lower interest rates that existed during 2010 and 2011 contributed directly to
these lower interest costs. Both investment and financing earnings were less during 2011 but the lower interest and
operating costs more than offset the lowered revenues resulting in the net income of $0.5 million.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The State’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2011, amounted to
$6.3 billion, with related accumulated depreciation of $1.8 billion, leaving a net book value of $4.5 billion. This investment
in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress.
Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and of value only to the State, such as roads, bridges, streets and
sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items.

The total increase in the State’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was approximately $0.3 billion (7.1%)
in terms of net book value. Most of the year’s capital expenditures were for construction, or reconstruction, of roads and
bridges. Additional information relating to the State’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the notes to the financial
statements.

Debt Administration
Montana receives excellent general obligation bond ratings from both Moody’s Investor Service (Aa2), Standard and Poor’s
Corporation (AA) and Fitch Ratings (AA).

State debt may be authorized either by a two-thirds vote of the members of each house of the Legislature, or by a favorable
vote of a majority of the State’s electors voting thereon. There is no constitutional limit on the amount of debt that may be
incurred by the State. The Montana Constitution does, however, prohibit the incurring of debt to cover deficits caused by
appropriations exceeding anticipated revenue.

The State of Montana’s general obligation debt increased from $169.2 million at June 30, 2010, to $174.3 million at June
30, 2011. $15.9 million is available in debt service funds to service this debt leaving a balance of $158.4 million in net

general obligation debt outstanding.

The ratio of general obligation debt to personal income and the amount of net general obligation debt per capita are:

Amount Percentage of State Debt
(in thousands) Personal Income (1) Per Capita (2)
General obligation debt $158,425 0.46% $179

The ratio of all State debt to personal income as included in the Statistical Tables follows:

Amount Percentage of State Debt
(in thousands) Personal Income (1) Per Capita (2)
Total State debt $356,037 1.0% $367
(1) Personal income is for calendar year 2010.
2) Based on estimated 2010 Montana population.

More detailed information regarding the State’s long-term obligations is presented in Note 11 to the financial statements and
the statistical tables.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The unemployment rate for the State of Montana was 7.5% in the second quarter of 2011, which represents an increase
from the rate of 7.3% during the second quarter of 2010. This compares favorably with the U.S. June, 2011, rate of 9.2%
but reflects the nature of the moderate economic recovery in Montana’s economy. An unusual aspect of the recovery is
positive impact resulting from the employment of a portion Montana’s workforce, still maintaining residency in Montana,
in the North Dakota oil fields. This employment of Montana residents in North Dakota and the related revenues derived
from payments to landowners and other residents of the area resulted in an overall mild economic recovery for the State
without the reduced unemployment that would normally accompany a recovery. While the economic data regarding this is
difficult to obtain, the impacts exist in the cities of eastern Montana and western North Dakota and flow through to these
financial statements. Increased oil lease activity in eastern and central Montana provide an indication of potential,
significant, future oil exploration and production within Montana. The status of Montana’s economy is discussed in detail in
the Transmittal letter.

31



Montana Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

The 62nd Legislative Session adjourned on April 28, 2011, with a projected unassigned General Fund balance of $227.3
million as of the end of fiscal year 2011. During fiscal year 2011, Montana’s economy began a moderate recovery ending
the year with the unassigned General Fund balance, as of June 30, 2011, at the $341.9 million level, significantly higher
than anticipated in the budget process.

As of June 30, 2011 five of the state retirement systems were not actuarially sound, and had an unfunded actuarially accrued
liability. These include the Teachers, Public Employees Defined Benefit Plan, Sheriffs, Game Warden & Peace Officers and
Highway Patrol Officers retirement systems. The actuarial condition of these plans are fully disclosed and reported as
required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and explained in greater detail in Note 6 and Note 18 of
the financial statements. The unfunded actuarial liability of these plans is long-term in nature, and does not translate into an
inability of the plans to meet their current obligations in the near future.

The other state retirement systems are actuarially sound as of fiscal year end 2011.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the State of Montana’s finances for all of Montana’s
citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors. The financial report seeks to demonstrate the State’s accountability
for the money it receives. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information should be addressed to the State of Montana, State Accounting Division, Room 255 Mitchell Building, Capitol
Complex, Helena, MT 59620.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash/cash equivalents (Note 3)
Receivables (net)
Due from primary government
Due from other governments
Due from component units
Estimated future claim contribution

from primary government

Internal balances
Inventories
Advances to component units
Long-term loans/notes receivable

Equity in pooled investments (Note 3)

Investments (Note 3)

Securities lending collateral (Note 3)
Deferred charges

Other assets

Capital assets (net) (Note 5)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Lottery prizes payable
Due to primary government
Due to other governments
Due to component units
Advances from primary government
Estimated future claim contribution
to component unit
Deferred revenue
Amounts held in custody for others
Securities lending liability (Note 3)
Other liabilities
Short-term debt (Note 11)
Long-term liabilities (Note 11):
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
OPEB implicit rate subsidy (Note 7)

Total liabilities

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

1,471,878 § 205,388 $ 1,677,766 415,957
421,071 41,893 462,964 109,456
. - . 1,941
217,581 3,002 220,673 22,828
1,003 1,764 2,767 348
. - . 64,621
(8,718) 8,718 - -
26,922 3,360 30,282 5,353
17,004 9,949 27,043 -
356,953 36,594 393,547 676,785
1,861,260 - 1,861,260 32,502
362,088 3,569 365,657 1,711,518
148,634 992 149,626 93,164
3,391 1,394 4,785 7,188
10,193 2,068 12,261 61,994
4,455,465 15,963 4,471,428 763,348
9,344,815 335,244 9,680,059 3,967,003
477,874 17,770 495,644 77,365
. 3,257 3,257 -
- - - 2,767
60,337 21 60,358 15
1,941 - 1,941 348
. - . 27,044
64,621 - 64,621 -
36,643 5,203 41,846 61,553
39,017 20 39,037 10,644
148,634 992 149,626 93,164
3,247 - 3,247 10,253
- 95,530 95,530 -
147,168 10,763 157,931 292,690
861,287 12,277 873,564 1,813,761
155,707 2,746 158,453 77,054
1,996,476 148,579 2,145,055 2,466,658
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 4,178,343 $§ 15,581 $ 4,193,924 $ 507,407
Restricted for:
General government 10,994 - 10,994 -
Transportation 109,939 - 109,939 -
Health and human services - - - -
Natural resources 321,849 - 321,849 -
Public safety 79,942 - 79,942 -
Education 25,125 - 25,125 -
Funds held as permanent investments:
Nonexpendable 1,293,499 - 1,293,499 251,301
Expendable 451,631 - 451,631 -
Unemployment compensation - 100,799 100,799 -
Housing authority - - - 156,523
Other purposes - 57,936 57,936 133,779
Unrestricted 877,017 12,349 889,366 451,335
Total net assets $ 7,348,339 $§ 186,665 $ 7,535,004 $ 1,500,345

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES GRANTS GRANTS NET
FOR AND AND (EXPENSE)
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS REVENUE
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government 752,565 § 138,059 $ 207,772 § - $ (406,734)
Public safety/corrections 308,593 145,754 12,789 (1) (150,061)
Transportation 390,523 25,143 43177 481,835 159,632
Health/social services 1,765,871 37,166 1,283,469 - (445,236)
Education/cultural 1,209,969 40,720 294,683 - (874,566)
Resource/recreation/environment 318,954 164,880 120,986 55,370 22,282
Principal on long-term debt 6 - - - (6)
Interest on long-term debt 16,314 - - - (16,314)
Total governmental activities 4,762,795 551,722 1,962,876 537,194 (1,711,003)
Business-type activities:
Unemployment Insurance 278,086 137,439 124,791 - (15,856)
Liquor Stores 63,573 73,298 - - 9,725
State Lottery 35,481 46,047 - - 10,566
Economic Development Bonds 1,126 18 1,641 - 533
Hail Insurance 8,379 6,710 - - (1,669)
General Government Services 63,003 23,044 41,394 281 1,716
Prison Funds 6,149 6,276 - - 127
MUS Group Insurance 63,501 65,228 396 - 2,123
MUS Workers Compensation 4,232 4,716 - - 484
Total business-type activities 523,530 362,776 168,222 281 7,749
Total primary government 5,286,325 $ 914,498 $ 2,131,098 $ 537,475 $ (1,703,254)
Component units:
Housing Authority 50,061 $ 437 § 48,947 $ -$ (677)
Facility Finance Authority 348 680 - - 332
State Compensation Insurance (New Fund) 202,265 173,605 - - (28,660)
State Compensation Insurance (Old Fund) 16,658 - - - (16,658)
Montana State University 471,019 198,135 191,171 10,258 (71,455)
University of Montana 405,165 182,128 133,236 15,010 (74,791)
Total component units 1,145,516 $ 554,985 $ 373,354 $ 25,268 $ (191,909)
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
Changes in net assets:
Net (expense) revenue (1,711,003) $ 7,749 § (1,703,254) $ (191,909)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property 241,961 - 241,961 -
Fuel 209,348 - 209,348 -
Natural resource 305,471 - 305,471 -
Individual income 810,108 - 810,108 -
Corporate income 121,801 - 121,801 -
Other (Note 1) 308,703 21,797 330,500 -
Unrestricted grants and contributions - - - 893
Settlements 38,747 27 38,774 -
Unrestricted investment earnings 155,419 4,642 160,061 120,778
Payment from State of Montana - - - 254,707
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 3,209 - 3,209 142
Miscellaneous 2,919 637 3,556 62
Contributions to term and
permanent endowments - - - 8,145
Transfers 40,547 (40,547) - -
Total general revenues, contributions,
and transfers 2,238,233 (13,444) 2,224,789 384,727
Change in net assets 527,230 (5,695) 521,535 192,818
Total net assets - July 1 - as previously reported 6,941,737 194,720 7,136,457 1,311,252
Prior period adjustments (Note 2) (120,628) (2,360) (122,988) (3,725)
Total net assets - July 1 - as restated 6,821,109 192,360 7,013,469 1,307,527
Total net assets - June 30 7,348,339 $ 186,665 $ 7,535,004 $ 1,500,345

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Fund
This fund is the principal operating fund of the State. It accounts for all governmental financial
resources, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

State Special Revenue Fund
This fund accounts for all activities funded from state sources, which are restricted either legally or
administratively for particular costs of an agency, program, or function.

Federal Special Revenue Fund
This fund accounts for activities funded from federal sources used in the operation of state
government.

Coal Severance Tax Fund

This fund, created by Article IX, Section 5, of the Montana Constitution and administered by the
Department of Revenue, receives 50% of all coal tax collections. The principal can be expended only
upon affirmative vote by three-fourths of each house of the Legislature.

Land Grant Fund

This fund is used by the Department of Natural Resources and Conservation to account for lands
granted to the State for support of public schools and state institutions.

Nonmajor Funds
Nonmajor governmental funds are presented, by fund type, beginning on page 152.
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BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands)

SPECIAL REVENUE PERMANENT
COAL
SEVERANCE LAND
GENERAL STATE FEDERAL TAX GRANT NONMAJOR TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash/cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 382,920 $ 791,110 § 66,657 $ 38,463 § 17,629 $ 74,845 § 1,371,624
Receivables (net) (Note 4) 218,217 113,458 13,996 10,153 57,007 7,116 419,947
Interfund loans receivable (Note 12) 45,960 61,878 39 - - - 107,877
Due from other governments 11,504 934 205,140 - - - 217,578
Due from other funds (Note 12) 50,819 7,847 - 1 - 1,037 59,704
Due from component units - 296 - 87 - 615 998
Inventories 2,473 20,531 - - - - 23,004
Equity in pooled investments (Note 3) - 412,200 - 688,102 501,052 259,907 1,861,261
Long-term loans/notes receivable 65 322,566 7,100 - - 27,222 356,953
Advances to other funds (Note 12) 1,250 19,066 - - - 8,696 29,012
Advances to component units - 3,046 - 8,381 - 5,667 17,094
Investments (Note 3) 16,367 116,831 1,475 170,696 186 17,282 322,837
Securities lending collateral (Note 3) - 48,019 328 41,501 29,987 23,350 143,185
Other assets 2,396 6,744 207 - - - 9,347
Total assets $ 731,971 § 1,924,526 $ 294,942 $ 957,384 $ 605,861 $ 425,737 $ 4,940,421
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable (Note 4) 203,854 89,580 138,773 - 3,767 3,424 439,398
Interfund loans payable (Note 12) - 7,778 98,958 - - - 106,736
Due to other governments 38 57,188 3111 - - - 60,337
Due to other funds (Note 12) 897 36,369 478 4,310 426 1,977 44,457
Due to component units 22,673 664 1,563 - - - 24,900
Advances from other funds (Note 12) - 21,790 3,930 - - 18,191 43911
Deferred revenue 109,569 33,687 12,660 - 52,704 497 209,117
Amounts held in custody for others 25,062 13,691 63 - 198 - 39,014
Securities lending liability (Note 3) - 48,019 328 41,501 29,987 23,350 143,185
Other liabilities 521 296 - - - - 817
Total Liabilities 362,614 309,062 259,864 45811 87,082 47,439 1,111,872
Fund balances (Note 14):
Nonspendable 2,891 21,435 - 531,339 516,772 252,760 1,325,197
Restricted - 1,046,555 35,078 - 2,007 22,663 1,106,303
Committed - 547,285 - 380,234 - 77,342 1,004,861
Assigned 24,591 2,157 - - - 25,542 52,290
Unassigned 341,875 (1,968) - - - 9) 339,898
Total fund balances 369,357 1,615,464 35,078 911,573 518,779 378,298 3,828,549
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 731,971 § 1,924,526 $ 294,942 § 957,384 § 605,861 § 425,737 § 4,940,421

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalent
Receivables

Interfund loans receivable
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Due from component units
Inventories

Internal Balances

Equity in pooled investments
Securities lending collateral
Advances to other funds
Advances to component units
Investments

Deferred charges

Capital assets

Long-term loans/notes receivable
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Interfund loans payable
Due to other government
Due to other funds
Due to component units
Advances from other funds
Estimated future claim contribution
to component unit
Deferred revenue
Amounts held in custody for others
Securities lending liability
Other current liabilities
Long term liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
OPEB implicit rate subsidy
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
General government
Transportation
Health and human services
Natural resources
Public safety
Education
Funds held as permanent investments:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(A) (8) @ (D) (E)
Other Statement
Total Internal Capital Debt Measurement Internal of Net
Governmental Service Assets Related Focus Balances Assets
Fund Fund Balances Balances Adjustments Elimination Totals
$ 1,371,624 § 100,255 $ -$ -$ (U] -$ 1,471,878
419,947 1,124 - - - 421,071
107,877 355 - - - (108,232)
217,578 2 - - 1 217,581
59,704 216 - - 2 (59,922) -
998 3 - - 2 1,003
23,004 3,915 - - 3 26,922
- - (8,718) (8,718)
1,861,261 - (1) 1,861,260
143,185 5,448 1 148,634
29,012 - (29,012) -
17,094 - - - - 17,094
322,837 39,253 - - (2) 362,088
- - - - 3,391 3,391
- 93,993 4,361,472 0 4,455,465
356,953 - - - - 356,953
9,347 849 - - (3) - 10,193
$ 4,940,421 § 245413 $§ 4,361,472 § -$ 3393 $§ (205,884) $ 9,344,815
439,398 10,010 - - 28,466 477,874
106,736 1,462 - - - (108,198) -
60,337 - - 60,337
44,457 1,858 - - - (46,315)
24,900 - - (22,959) 1,941
43911 3,156 - - 4,304 (51,371)
- - - - 64,621 64,621
209,117 1,378 - - (173,852) 36,643
39,014 1 - - 2 39,017
143,185 5,448 - - 1 148,634
817 - - - 2430 - 3,247
- 19,592 - 127,578 2) 147,168
- 19,438 - 841,851 2) 861,287
- 8,714 - 146,992 1 155,707
1,111,872 71,057 1,116,421 (96,990) (205,884) 1,996,476
93,450 4,332,128 (241,415) (5,820) 4,178,343
13,146 - (2,459) 307 10,994
116,353 - 29,344 (137,135) 101,377 109,939
22,025 (28,276) 6,251 -
634,957 - - (273,403) (39,705) 321,849
290,768 - - (255,462) 44,636 79,942
29,054 - - (2,018) (1,911) 25,125
1,325,197 - - - (31,698) 1,293,499
- - - - 451,631 451,631
1,397,049 80,906 - (176,253) (424,685) 877,017
$ 3,828,549 $§ 174,356 $ 4361472 §  (1,116421) § 100,383 $ -$ 7,348,339
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Differences between the Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds and Governmental Activities on the Government Wide
Statement of Net Assets

(A)

B

©

Internal services funds (ISF): Management uses ISF to report the charges for and the costs of goods and services
sold by state agencies solely within the state. Because the sales are primarily to governmental funds, the assets,
liabilities and the net assets of the ISF are included in the governmental activities on the government-wide Statement
of Net Assets. ISF are reported using proprietary fund-type accounting in the fund-level financial statements. See
page 192 for the listing of the ISF.

Capital assets balances: Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, they
are not included in the fund level financial statements. However, Capital assets are economic resources and are
reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Debt related balances: Long term liabilities such as leases, bonds, notes, mortgages, and certificate of participation
(including accrued interest) are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore, they are not included in the
fund —level financial statements. However, from an economic perspective these liabilities reduce net assets and are
reported in the Statement of Net Assets. The portion reported as current in the reconciliation is payable within the
following fiscal year. The largest portion of the long-term balance is related to Pollution Remediation, Bonds/Notes
Payables and OPEB implicit rate subsidy.

(D) Other measurement focus adjustments include:

(E)

o Interfund balances receivable from or payable to Fiduciary funds are reported on the fund- level Balance Sheet-
Governmental funds as due from/to other funds. On the government —wide Statement of Net Assets, these
amounts are considered external receivables and payables.

e Long-term assets and long-term taxes receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures;
therefore, the related revenue is reported as deferred revenue on the fund-level Balance Sheet- Governmental
funds. From an economic perspective, this revenue is earned and the related deferred revenue is removed from
the government —wide Statement of Net Assets when the revenue is recognized on the government-wide
statement of Activities.

e Compensated absences are a GAAP modification of the full accrual basis of accounting similar to claims and
judgments discussed above. Therefore, both the current and long-term portions of the liability are shown on the
government — wide statement of Net Assets, but they are not reported on the fund-level Balance Sheet-
Governmental Funds.

Internal balances: All interfund activities such as Interfund loan receivable\payables, due from\due to and advances
to\from other fund balances shown on the fund-level Balance Sheet -Governmental Funds are reported as internal
balances. Per GAAP these balances should be eliminated from the governmental-wide Statement of Net Assets to
avoid double counting.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands)

SPECIAL REVENUE PERMANENT
COAL
SEVERANCE LAND
GENERAL STATE FEDERAL TAX GRANT NONMAJOR TOTAL
REVENUES (Note 14)
Licenses/permits $ 118,749 $§ 167,396 $ -3 -3 1435 $ -$ 287,580
Taxes:
Natural resource 136,550 130,169 - 29,220 - 9,689 305,528
Individual income 798,590 - - - - - 798,590
Corporate income 120,240 2 - - - - 120,242
Property 227,085 14,876 - - - - 241,961
Fuel - 209,348 - - - 209,348
Other 206,699 102,519 - - - 1,835 311,053
Charges for services/fines/forfeits/settiements 43,616 92,655 42,785 - - 12,086 191,142
Investment earnings 3,907 33,480 295 50,041 29,962 25,513 143,198
Securities lending income 379 832 13 650 483 275 2,632
Sale of documents/merchandise/property 329 3,984 1 - 9,186 3,708 17,208
Rentals/leases/royalties 20 759 - - 69,543 - 70,322
Contributions/premiums 7 20,692 - - - - 20,685
Grants/contracts/donations 4313 18,825 263 - 38 - 23,439
Federal 34,039 11,425 2,292,626 - - - 2,338,090
Federal indirect cost recoveries 208 46,473 54,471 - - - 101,152
Other revenues 327 1,918 192 - - - 2,437
Total revenues 1,695,044 855,353 2,390,646 79,911 110,647 53,006 5,184,607
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 248,681 257,214 135,730 - 1,998 643,623
Public safety/corrections 253,553 78,156 14,961 - - - 346,670
Transportation 358 180,713 90,316 - - 271,387
Health/social services 342,080 133,118 1,280,277 - - 2,158 1,757,633
Education/cultural 781,841 85,933 340,748 - - 16 1,208,538
Resource/recreation/environment 29,471 160,635 79,169 - 3,618 2 272,895
Debt service:
Principal retirement 710 666 113 - - 32,485 33,974
Interest/fiscal charges 67 847 12 - - 15,436 16,362
Capital outlay 1,247 105,586 406,970 - 7372 44,768 565,943
Securities lending 81 194 3 148 110 64 600
Total expenditures 1,658,089 1,003,062 2,348,299 148 11,100 96,927 5,117,625
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures 36,955 (147,709) 42,347 79,763 99,547 (43,921) 66,982
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Inception of lease/installment contract 19 17 - - - - 36
Insurance proceeds - 4,326 - - - - 4,326
General capital asset sale proceeds 131 887 - - 3,112 - 4,130
Refunding bond issued - 10,180 - - - - 10,180
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent - (10,700) - - - (362) (11,062)
Bond premium - 767 - - - - 767
Bond proceeds - 30,450 - - - 550 31,000
Transfers in (Note 12) 87,944 166,307 2,935 393 1 93,786 351,366
Transfers out (Note 12) (77,510) (36,605) (45,414) (34,366) (75,684) (47,355) (316,934)
Total other financing sources (uses) 10,584 165,629 (42,479) (33,973) (72,571) 46,619 73,809
Net change in fund balances 47,539 17,920 (132) 45,790 26,976 2,698 140,791
Fund balances - July 1 - as previously reported 327,006 1,534,855 32,114 865,783 501,342 426,756 3,687,856
Prior period adjustments (Note 2) (6,740) 60,232 3,096 - (9,539) (51,156) (4,107)
Fund balances - July 1 - as restated 320,266 1,595,087 35,210 865,783 491,803 375,600 3,683,749
Increase (decrease) in inventories 1,552 2,457 - - - - 4,009
Fund balances - June 30 $ 369,357 $ 1,615,464 $ 35,078 $ 911,573 § 518,779 $ 378,298 $ 3,828,549

The notes to the financial statements are in integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands)

(A) (B) (€ (D)

Long Statement
Total Internal Capital Term Other of
Governmental Service Related Debt Measurement Activities
Fund Fund Items Transactions Focus Total
REVENUES
License/permits ( Charges for Services) $ 287,580 $ - $ -8 - $ (782) $ 286,798
Taxes:
Natural resources 305,528 - - - (57) 305,471
Individual income 798,590 - - - 11,518 810,108
Corporate income 120,242 - - - 1,559 121,801
Property 241,961 - - - - 241,961
Fuel 209,348 - - - - 209,348
Other (Note 1) 311,053 - - - (2,350) 308,703
Charges for services/fines/forfeits/settlements 191,142 - - - 720 191,862
Investment earnings (Unrestricted Investments) 143,198 893 - - 11,328 155,419
Securities lending income (Unrestricted investment) 2,632 - - - (2,632) -
Sale of documents/merchandise/property 17,208 - - - (654) 16,554
Rentals/leases/royalties (Charges for Services) 70,322 - - - - 70,322
Contributions/premiums (Charges for Services) 20,685 - - - 10 20,695
Insurance proceeds 4,326 - - - (88) 4,238
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - - 3,209 - - 3,209
Operating grants and donations 23,439 - - - 198 23,637
Federal (Operating Grants) 2,338,090 - - - (500,003) 1,838,087
Federal indirect cost recoveries 101,152 - - - - 101,152
Capital grants and contributions - - - - 537,194 537,194
Other revenues 2,437 254 - - 228 2,919
Total revenues 5,188,933 1,147 3,209 - 56,189 5,249,478
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Current 4,500,746 (16,156) 39,614 - 222,277 4,746,481
Debt service
Principal 33,974 - - (33,974) - -
Interest/fiscal charges 16,362 203 - (251) - 16,314
Capital outlay 565,943 - (565,943) - - -
Securities lending 600 16 - - (616)
Total expenditures 5,117,625 (15,937) (526,329) (34,225) 221,661 4,762,795
Excess of revenue over (under) expenditures 71,308 17,084 529,538 34,225 (165,472) 486,683
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Inception of lease/installment contract 36 - - (36) -
General capital asset sale proceeds 4,130 - - (4,130) -
Refunding bonds issued 10,180 - - (10,180) - -
Payment to refunding bond escrow agent (11,062) - - 11,062 - -
Bond premium 767 - - (767) - -
Bond proceeds 31,000 - - (31,000) - -
Transfers (Note 12) 34,432 5,628 - - 486 40,547
Total other financing sources (uses) 69,483 5,628 - (35,050) 486 40,547
Net change in fund balance $ 140,791 § 22,713 § 529,538 $§ (825) $ (164,986) $ 527,230
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Differences between the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
and Governmental Activities on the Government —Wide Statement of Activities

(A) Internal service funds (ISF): Management uses the ISF to report charges for and the costs of goods and services sold
by state agencies solely within the state. ISF are intended to operate on the cost reimbursement basis and should
break even each period. If an ISF makes a profit, the other funds of the state have been overcharged. If an ISF has an
operating loss the other funds of the state have been undercharged. In order to show the true cost of services
purchased from ISF, an adjustment is made that allocates the net revenue/expense of each ISF to the programs that
purchased the services. Investment income, debt service, and transfers of the ISF are not allocated. See page 192
for the listing of ISF.

(B) Capital related items: The following adjustments relate to capital assets:

Capital assets, received as donations, are not reported on the fund-level Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds because they are not current financial resources.
However, such donations increase net assets and are reported on both the government — wide Statement of Net
Assets and Statement of Activities.

Depreciation is not reported on the fund-level Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Governmental Funds, but it is reported for the economic perspective on which the government —wide
Statement of Activities is presented.

Expenditures reported for capital outlay on the fund-level Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and changes in
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds are generally reported as a conversion of cash to a capital asset on the
government wide Statement of Net Assets. They are not reported as expenses on the government —wide
Statement of Activities.

On the fund —level Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund Balances - Governmental Funds
all cash received on disposal of capital assets is reported as a gain on sale of capital assets. On the government-
wide Statement of Activities the reported gain or loss on sale is based on the carrying value of the assets as well
as the cash received.

(C) Long term debt: The following adjustments relate to debt issuance and debt service including leases:

Payments on principal and debt refunding payments are reported as expenditures and other financing uses,
respectively on the fund-level Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
governmental Funds. These payments are reported as reduction of lease, bonds and other debt liability balances
on the government — wide Statement of Net Assets are not reported on the government — wide Statement of
Activities.

Amortization of issuance cost, debt premium/discount, gains/loss on refunding debts are not reported on the
fund-level Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- - Governmental Funds, but
are reported on the government — wide state of Activities.

Lease proceeds, issuance of debt, and debt refunding proceeds are all reported as other financing sources at the
fund level Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in fund Balances — Governmental Funds. From
an economic perspective lease proceeds, debt issuances, and debt refunding proceeds reported as liabilities on
the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and are not reported on the government — wide Statement of
Activities.

(D) Other measurement focus adjustments include;

Long-term taxes receivable and certain other long-term assets are offset by deferred revenue and are not part of
fund balance on the fund-level Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds; however, from a full accrual perspective,
changes in the fund —level deferred revenue balances result in adjustments to revenue that are recognized and
reported on the government-wide Statement of Activities.

Expenditures that primarily benefit present period are classified as current expenditures. In governmental funds,
capital outlays are included as part of the current expenditures for each functional activity within that fund.
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PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unemployment Insurance

The Unemployment Insurance Fund accounts for employer contributions deposited with the
Secretary of the Treasury of the United States to the credit of the State’s unemployment trust fund.
Unemployment benefits are paid from this fund to eligible recipients.

Economic Development Bonds

The Economic Development Bonds Fund accounts for the Economic Development Bond Act
programs and the Municipal Finance Consolidation Act programs. These programs assist Montana’s
small businesses, local governments, and state agencies in obtaining long-term, fixed-rate financing
through private Montana lending institutions.

Nonmajor Funds
Nonmajor enterprise funds are presented beginning on page 170.

Governmental Activities — Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are used to account for operations that provide goods or services to other
agencies or programs of state government on a cost-reimbursement basis. These funds are presented
in more detail beginning on page 192.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands )

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash/cash equivalents (Note 3)
Receivables (net) (Note 4)
Interfund loans receivable (Note 12)
Due from other governments
Due from other funds (Note 12)
Due from component units
Inventories
Short-term investments (Note 3)
Securities lending collateral (Note 3)
Other current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Advances to other funds (Note 12)
Advances to component units
Long-term investments (Note 3)
Long-term notes/loans receivable
Deferred charges
Other long-term assets
Capital assets (Note 5):
Land
Land improvements
Buildings/improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Other Depreciable Assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES -
ECONOMIC INTERNAL
UNEMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT SERVICE
INSURANCE BONDS NONMAIJOR TOTAL FUNDS
94,759 $ 22,408 $ 88,721 $ 205,888 $ 100,255
9,807 7,781 24215 41,893 1124
- 3 3 355
2,565 527 3,092 2
- 2,899 3 2,902 216
- 1764 - 1764 3
- 3,360 3,360 3915
- 983 - 983
- 5 987 992 5,448
- 87 87 849
107,221 35,840 117,903 260,964 112,167
- 17,980 75 18,055
- 9,949 - 9,949
- 1301 1,285 2,586 39,253
- 36,321 273 36,594
- 1,394 - 1,394
- 1,981 1,981
- 800 800 236
- 3,830 3,830 95
- 7,454 7,454 4,704
- 4 8,366 8,370 224,868
- 951 951 -
- 2,703 2,703 7,244
- 51 51 1,067
- 3,206 3,206
- @) (11,398) (11,402) (144,221)
- 15,963 15,963 93,993
- 66,945 19,577 86,522 133,246
107,221 102,785 137,480 347,486 245413
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands)

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable (Note 4)
Lottery prizes payable
Interfund loans payable (Note 12)
Due to other governments
Due to other funds (Note 12)
Deferred revenue
Lease/installment purchase payable (Note 10)
Short-term debt (Note 11)
Bonds/notes payable - net (Note 11)
Amounts held in custody for others
Securities lending liability (Note 3)
Estimated insurance claims (Note 8)
Compensated absences payable (Note 11)
Arbitrage rebate tax payable (Note 11)

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Lottery prizes payable
Advances from other funds (Note 12)
Lease/installment purchase payable (Note 10)
Bonds/notes payable - net (Note 11)
Estimated insurance claims (Note 8)
Compensated absences payable (Note 11)
OPEB implicit rate subsidy (Note 7)

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Unemployment Compensation
Other Purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES -
ECONOMIC INTERNAL
UNEMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT SERVICE
INSURANCE BONDS NONMAJOR TOTAL FUNDS
6,404 § 172§ 11,194 § 17,770 $ 10,010
- 1,731 1,731
12 25 37 1,462
- 21 21
- 12,205 12,205 1,858
6 5,197 5,203 1,378
- - 80 80 138
- 95,530 - 95,530
- 60 - 60
- 20 20 1
- 5 987 992 5,448
- 9,769 9,769 16,151
- 21 822 843 3,302
- 11 - 11
6,422 95,799 42,051 144,272 39,748
- 1,526 1,526 -
- - 3,156
- 302 302 405
- 135 - 135
11,130 11,130 16,211
4 706 710 2,823
49 2,697 2,746 8,714
188 16,361 16,549 31,309
6,422 95,987 58,412 160,821 71,057
15,581 15,581 93,450
100,799 - 100,799
- 2,974 54,962 57,936
- 3,824 8,625 12,349 80,906
100,799 $ 6,798 $ 79,068 $ 186,665 $ 174,356

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES -
ECONOMIC INTERNAL
UNEMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT SERVICE
INSURANCE BONDS NONMAIJOR TOTAL FUNDS

Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ -$ 18 $ 133,578 $ 133,596 $ 131,043
Investment earnings 4,392 91 215 4,698 831
Securities lending income - - 35 35 63
Financing income - 1,550 - 1,550 -
Contributions/premiums 137,439 - 91,488 228,927 141,398
Grants/contracts/donations 124,791 - 41,790 166,581 2,992
Other operating revenues - - 915 915 2,462
Total operating revenues 266,622 1,659 268,021 536,302 278,789

Operating expenses:
Personal services - 168 13,404 13,572 49,261
Contractual services - 30 15,653 15,683 21,573
Supplies/materials - 5 64,761 64,766 26,483
Benefits/claims 277,547 9 117,952 395,508 117,394
Depreciation - - 884 884 11,493
Amortization - - 34 34 432
Utilities/rent - 44 1,021 1,065 14,551
Communications - 9 1,302 1,311 11,798
Travel - 1 212 213 253
Repairs/maintenance - - 962 962 10,430
Lottery prize payments - - 24,778 24,778 -
Securities lending expense - - 7 7 16
Arbitrage rebate tax - Q) - Q) -
Dividend expense - - 750 750 -
Interest expense - 837 23 860 193
Other operating expenses 539 24 2,564 3,127 4,618
Total operating expenses 278,086 1,126 244,307 523,519 268,495
Operating income (loss) (11,464) 533 23,714 12,783 10,294

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Tax revenues - - 21,797 21,797 -
Insurance proceeds - - - - 254
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - - ©)] ©)] 86
Federal indirect cost recoveries - - - - 6,449
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - - 21,788 21,788 6,789
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (11,464) 533 45,502 34,571 17,083
Capital contributions - - 317 317 2,410
Transfers in (Note 12) - - 54 54 5,466
Transfers out (Note 12) (1,584) - (39,053) (40,637) (2,248)
Change in net assets (13,048) 533 6,820 (5,695) 22,711
Total net assets - July 1 - as previously reported 116,530 6,265 71,925 194,720 149,087
Prior period adjustments (Note 2) (2,683) - 323 (2,360) 2,558
Total net assets - July 1 - as restated 113,847 6,265 72,248 192,360 151,645
Total net assets - June 30 $ 100,799 $ 6,798 $ 79,068 $ 186,665 $ 174,356

The notes to the financial statements are in integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES --
ECONOMIC INTERNAL
UNEMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT SERVICE
INSURANCE BONDS NONMAJOR TOTAL FUNDS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from sales and services $ 134926 § 18 § 225145 § 360,089 $ 274,900
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (539) (113) (121,835) (122,487) (94,497)
Payments to employees - (167) (13,413) (13,580) (51,897)
Grant receipts 123,576 - 41,793 165,369 2,992
Cash payments for claims (276,067) - (80,443) (356,510) (109,738)
Cash payments for prizes - - (25,314) (25,314) -
Other operating revenues 1 - 895 896 9,267
Other operating payments - - (1,108) (1,108) -
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities (18,103) (262) 25,720 7,355 31,027
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Collection of taxes - - 21,762 21,762 -
Transfers to other funds (1,584) - (42,970) (44,554) (2,248)
Transfers from other funds - - 335 335 5,467
Proceeds from interfund loans/advances - - 47 47 1,473
Payments of interfund loans/advances 12 - (45) (33) (4,540)
Payment of principal and interest on bonds and notes - (1,472) (94) (1,566) (697)
Payment of bond issuance costs - 1 - 1 -
Net cash provided by (used for)
noncapital financing activities (1,572) (1,471) (20,965) (24,008) (545)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from insurance - - - - 254
Acquisition of capital assets - - (232) (232) (7,554)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 36 36 -
Net cash used for capital and
related financing activities - - (196) (196) (7,300)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments - (1,505) 615 (890) (4,424)
Proceeds from sales or maturities of investments - 2,757 2,207 4,964 -
Proceeds from securities lending transactions - - 35 35 63
Interest and dividends on investments 4,392 125 366 4,883 829
Payment of securities lending costs - - (7) (7) (16)
Collections of principal and interest on loans - 24,162 - 24,162 -
Cash payment for loans - (18,239) - (18,239) -
Net cash provided by (used for)
investing activities 4,392 7,300 3,216 14,908 (3,548)
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (15,283) 5,567 7,775 (1,941) 19,634
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 110,042 16,841 80,946 207,829 80,621
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $ 94,759 § 22,408 $ 88,721 § 205,888 $ 100,255

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities:

Depreciation

Amortization

Interest expense

Securities lending expense

Investment Earnings

Securities lending income

Financing income

Federal indirect cost recoveries

Arbitrage rebate tax

Change in assets and liabilities:

Decr (|
Decr (incr) in due from other funds
Decr (incr) in due from component units
(
(i

incr) in accounts receivable

Decr (incr) in due from other governments
Decr (incr) in inventories
Decr (incr) in other assets
Incr (decr) in accounts payable
Incr (decr) in lottery prizes payable
Incr (decr) in due to other funds
Incr (decr) in due to other governments
Incr (decr) in deferred revenue
Incr (decr) in amounts held in custody for others
Incr (decr) in compensated absences payable
Incr (decr) in OPEB implicit rate subsidy
Incr (decr) in estimated claims
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities

Schedule of noncash transactions:

Capital asset acquisitions from contributed capital
Capital contributions from other funds

Incr (decr) in fair value of investments

Total noncash transactions

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES -- ENTERPRISE FUNDS ACTIVITIES --
ECONOMIC INTERNAL
UNEMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT SERVICE
INSURANCE BONDS NONMAIJOR TOTAL FUNDS

(11464) § 533§ 23714 12,783 § 10,204
- - 884 884 11,494

- - 3 34 432

- 837 23 860 193

- - 7 7 16
(4,393) 1) (368) (4,852) (829)
- - (35) (35) (63)

- (1,550) - (1,550) -

- - - - 6,449

- ) - ) -
(2,962) - 1,346 (1,616) 1,737
1,344 - 1 1,345 1,654
(2,545) - 33 2512) @)
- - 426 426 4
- - 17 17 (1,428)

- - 507 507 1,711
1,916 3 (1,223) 696 (5,527)

- - (536) (536) -
- - (@377) (377) @7)

- - (25) (25) -

1 - (1,372) (1,371) 100

- - - - 2

- o (40) @1) 10

- 8 655 663 2,150

- - 2,049 2,049 2,678
(18,103) § 262) $ 25720 § 735§ 31,027
- - 36 36 2410

- - 281 281 -

- 16 - 16 -
-5 169 317_$ 333_$ 2410
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FIDUCIARY FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds
These funds provide retirement, disability, death, and lump-sum payments to retirement system
members.

Private-Purpose Trust Funds
These funds are used to account for assets held by the State in a trustee capacity, where both the
principal and earnings benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Investment Trust Fund

This fund accounts for the receipt of monies by the Montana Board of Investments for investment in
the Short-term Investment Pool (STIP), an external investment pool, and the distribution of related
investment earnings to local government agencies.

Agency Funds
Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the State as an agent for individuals, private

organizations, and other governments.

Individual funds are presented, by fund type, beginning on page 211.
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STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

PENSION
(AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE PRIVATE-
BENEFIT) PURPOSE INVESTMENT AGENCY
TRUST FUNDS TRUST FUNDS TRUST FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash/cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 135,574 $ 156,155 $ 408,172 $ 11,666
Receivables (net):
Accounts receivable 23,883 - - 457
Interest 11,821 5 97 -
Due from primary government 22,959 - - -
Due from other PERB plans 667 - - -
Long-term loans/notes receivable 12 - - -
Total receivables 59,342 5 97 457
Investments at fair value:
Equity in pooled investments (Note 3) 7,681,835 - - -
Other investments (Note 3) 439,292 96,146 7,050 5
Total investments 8,121,127 96,146 7,050 5
Securities lending collateral (Note 3) 387,980 306 5,525 4
Capital Assets:
Land 35 - - -
Buildings/improvements 158 - - -
Equipment 148 - - -
Accumulated depreciation (226) - - -
Intangible assets 143 - - -
Total capital assets 258 - - -
Other assets 6 29,136 - 13,376
Total assets 8,704,287 281,748 420,844 25,508
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,267 9 97 323
Due to other PERB plans 666 - - -
Deferred revenue 3,708 - - -
Amounts held in custody for others 5 1,184 - 25,181
Securities lending liability (Note 3) 387,980 306 5,525 4
Compensated absences payable 450 - - -
OPEB implicit rate subsidy 562 - - -
Total liabilities 394,638 1,499 5,622 25,508
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits
and other purposes $ 8,309,649 $ 280,249 $ 415222 $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands)

ADDITIONS
Contributions/premiums:
Employer
Employee
Other contributions
Net investment earnings:
Investment earnings
Administrative investment expense
Securities lending income
Securities lending expense
Charges for services
Other additions

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits

Refunds

Distributions

Administrative expenses:
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies/materials
Depreciation
Amortization
Utilities/rent
Communications
Travel
Repair/maintenance
Grants
Other operating expenses

Local assistance

Transfers to ORP

Transfers to PERS-DCRP

Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets - July 1 - as previously reported

Prior period adjustments (Note 2)

Net assets - July 1 - as restated

Net assets - June 30

PENSION
(AND OTHER
EMPLOYEE
BENEFIT)
TRUST FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

PRIVATE-
PURPOSE
TRUST FUNDS

INVESTMENT
TRUSTS

184,427 §
185,035
43,040

1,510,571
(42,943)
3,187
(885)
690

431

28,921

14,055

11
(2)

6,829

807,664

919
(110)
173
37)

1,883,553

49,814

808,609

543,648
19,111

3,383
3,109
201
21
193
317

751,928

571,265

59,329

751,928

1,312,288

(9,515)

56,681

6,997,316
45

289,764

358,591
(50)

6,997,361

289,764

358,541

8,309,649 $

280,249 $

415,222

The notes to the financial statements are an integral party of this statement.
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COMPONENT UNIT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Housing Authority
This authority facilitates the availability of decent, safe, and sanitary housing to persons and families
of lower income. The board issues negotiable notes and bonds to fulfill its purposes.

Facility Finance Authority
This authority assists all eligible, non-profit Montana health care and other community-based service
providers to obtain and maintain access to the broadest range of low-cost capital financing possible.

Montana State Fund (New and Old Fund)

This entity provides workers compensation insurance. Though reported in separate columns, the
Montana State Fund (New Fund) and the State of Montana (Old Fund) are one legally separate entity,
thus a single component unit with separate accounting funds. The New Fund covers claims incurred
after June 30, 1990, and is financed by member (employer) premiums. The Old Fund covers claims
incurred before July 1, 1990. In any fiscal year that Old Fund claims are not adequately funded with
its own resources, the amount necessary to pay these claims must be transferred from the General
Fund to Old Fund.

Montana State University and University of Montana

These universities are funded through state appropriations, tuition, federal grants, and private
donations and grants. In addition to instruction, these universities provide research and other
services.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
COMPONENT UNITS

JUNE 30, 2011

(amounts expressed in thousands,

ASSETS
Cash/cash equivalents (Note 3)
Receivables (net)
Due from primary government
Due from other governments
Due from component units
Estimated future claims contributions

from primary government

Inventories
Long-term loans/notes receivable
Equity in pooled investments (Note 3)
Investments (Note 3)
Securities lending collateral (Note 3)
Deferred charges
Other assets
Capital assets (net) (Note 5)

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to primary government
Due to component units
Due to other governments
Advances from primary government
Deferred revenue
Amounts held in custody for others
Securities lending liability (Note 3)
Other liabilities
Long-term liabilities (Note 11):

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
OPEB implicit rate subsidy (Note 7)

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Funds held as permanent investments:
Nonexpendable
Housing authority
Other purposes
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

MONTANA MONTANA
FACILITY STATE STATE
HOUSING FINANCE FUND FUND

AUTHORITY AUTHORITY (NEW FUND) (OLD FUND)
145,370 $ 2,985 $ 19,715 $ 17
20,112 271 58,105 16
103 - - -
- - - 64,621
636,551 904 - -
136,723 50 1,203,149 -
5 39 89,190 -
5,570 - - -
226 - 49,059 -
3 - 34,720 -
944,663 4,249 1,453,938 64,654
4,155 1 15,282 109
- - 37,369 -
- - 2,775 -
5 39 89,190 -
137,302 12 110,516 9,888
646,430 20 824,873 54,733
245 20 3,405 -
788,137 102 1,083,410 64,730
3 - 34,720 -
156,523 - - -
- 4,147 335,808 (76)
156,526 $ 4147 $ 370,528 $ (76)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTANA UNIVERSITY
STATE OF
UNIVERSITY MONTANA TOTAL
166,375 $ 81,495 § 415,957
13,130 17,822 109,456
998 943 1,941
14,119 8,606 22,828
51 297 348
- - 64,621
3,423 1,930 5,353
29,522 9,808 676,785
15,555 16,947 32,502
164,620 206,976 1,711,518
2,311 1,619 93,164
- 1,618 7,188
7,252 5,457 61,994
369,434 359,191 763,348
786,790 712,709 3,967,003
33,312 24,496 77,365
1,715 1,052 2,767
297 51 348
- 15 15
17,103 9,941 27,044
9,311 14,873 61,553
5,983 1,886 10,644
2,311 1,619 93,164
5,770 4,483 10,253
18,991 15,981 292,690
144,903 142,802 1,813,761
40,127 33,257 77,054
279,823 250,456 2,466,658
246,121 226,563 507,407
109,663 141,638 251,301
- - 156,523
70,208 63,571 133,779
80,975 30,481 451,335
506,967 $ 462,253 $ 1,500,345
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(amounts expressed in thousands)

EXPENSES

PROGRAM REVENUES:
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total program revenues

Net (expenses) program revenues

GENERAL REVENUES:
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Unrestricted investment earnings
Payment from State of Montana
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

Contributions to term and permanent endowments

Total general revenues and contributions

Change in net assets
Total net assets - July 1 - as previously reported
Prior period adjustments (Note 2)

Total net assets - July 1 - as restated

Total net assets - June 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

MONTANA MONTANA
FACILITY STATE STATE
HOUSING FINANCE FUND FUND
AUTHORITY AUTHORITY (NEW FUND) (OLD FUND)
50,061 $ 348 $ 202,265 $ 16,658
437 680 173,605
48,947 -
49,384 680 173,605
(677) 332 (28,660) (16,658)
- 65 82,238 75
- - 64,671
; 14
- 59 3
- 65 82,311 64,749
(677) 397 53,651 48,091
157,203 3,750 316,877 (48,167)
157,203 3,750 316,877 (48,167)
156,526 $ 447§ 370,528 § (76)
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MONTANA UNIVERSITY
STATE OF
UNIVERSITY MONTANA TOTAL
$ 471019 $ 405,165 $ 1,145,516
198,135 182,128 554,985
191,171 133,236 373,354
10,258 15,010 25,268
399,564 330,374 953,607
(71,455) (74,791) (191,909)
893 - 893
3,744 34,656 120,778
105,859 84,177 254,707
130 2) 142
- - 62
2,664 5,481 8,145
113,290 124,312 384,727
41,835 49,521 192,818
465,660 415,929 1311,252
(528) (3,197) (3,725)
465,132 412,732 1,307,527
$ 506,967 $ 462,253 $ 1,500,345
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements for the State of Montana have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A separate legal entity reported as a component unit of the State of Montana, the Montana State Fund (State Fund), issued a
financial report for fiscal year 2011 that State management believes does not comply with GAAP, as required under State
statute. The State Fund financial statements do not report the Old Fund activity for which they are primarily liable, as
required under GAAP. The Montana Legislative Auditor’s Office (LAD) issued an “unqualified” opinion on this report that
does not include the Old Fund financial reporting. Management does not believe that this provides the complete reporting for
the State Fund required under GAAP. It is our opinion, to adjust the State Fund financial statements included in this report, to
comply with the LAD recommended presentation, would violate State law, compromise consistency in financial statement
reporting and be misleading to the financial statement users.

We do agree that the State primary government is required to report the liability to the State Fund for the obligation to
provide funding for the related claims payments to State Fund and have recorded this in the government wide financial
statements along with the related receivable in the State Fund, Old Fund, component unit financial statements. The reporting
of the liability relating to the primary government obligation to the State Fund was never at issue with LAD.

In summary, management does not agree with the LAD recommended State Fund reporting change, and related qualification,
because:

1. The legal liability for the Old Fund claims has not been transferred from the State Fund to the State of Montana,
primary government, and, as a result GAAP requires that the State Fund continue reporting the contractual
obligation to the related claimants. Management confirmed that the legal liability remains with the State Fund in a
legal opinion issued by the Department of Administration (DofA) Chief Legal Counsel and a letter of advice from
the Attorney General. Management requested the State Fund and LAD provide a legal opinion supporting the
change in reporting as included in the State Fund financial statements. Neither of these entities provided a legal
opinion, although LAD provided a legal letter that was considered in the DofA attorney’s legal opinion.

2. State Law, MCA 17-1-102(2) and (4) and 17-2-110(3) require the State’s accounting system and financial reports be
in compliance with GAAP. Because it is management’s opinion this LAD recommended reporting presentation is
not in compliance with GAAP, management cannot present the CAFR in this format.

3. The related recommended audit adjustment would have resulted in misleading component unit statements in the
CAFR. The recommended change would have removed an activity the State Fund is legally liable for, from the
related component unit financial statements, and_only reported this in the State of Montana financial reports. This
would have been misleading to the financial statement users because it informs them that the liability no longer
belongs to the State Fund.

4. The State Fund’s presentation is not consistent with that of previous years. After the formation of the State Fund
additional money was provided to fund the Old Fund liability through payments (transfers) to the State Fund from
the primary government. Transferring additional funds to the State Fund, to pay their liability is consistent with the
past practice, that provided the previous funding, and should be reported in the same manner. The fact that a specific
primary revenue source is no longer involved should not have an impact on the reporting of this activity in the State
Fund financial statements.

5. In addition to the resources provided to the State Fund, for the Old Fund liability in 2011, the primary government
funded a significant amount of component unit financial activity. This includes $105.9 million of the Montana State
University expenditures (22.5%), $84.2 million of the University of Montana expenditures (20.1%), and $1.6
million (100%) of the Volunteer Fire Fighters Compensation Act Fund. The State also funds a substantial portion of
the local government K-12 education expenditures, a significant amount of the Community College funding, and
many other activities throughout the State, both as part of the appropriation process and as direct revenue and cash
distributions. The act of funding does not require management to report these activities, of separate legal entities, as
liabilities of the State of Montana primary government.
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Management confirmed with GASB staff that that the legal liability absolutely determines the financial reporting, through
their technical inquiry process. As a result we firmly believe our interpretation of their Standards is correct, as discussed
above. LAD did not accept the GASB staff interpretation.

A. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State of Montana has included all funds which comprise the State of Montana (the
primary government) and its component units. The component units are entities for which the State is financially
accountable, or whose relationship with the State is such that exclusion would cause the State's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These
criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and (1) the ability of the State to impose its
will on that organization or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on, the State.

Discretely Presented Component Units

These component units are entities that are legally separate from the State because they possess corporate powers, but are
financially accountable to the State, or whose relationships with the State are such that exclusion would cause the State's
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Complete financial statements of the individual component units, which
issue separate financial statements, can be obtained from their respective administrative offices. The component unit columns
of the combined financial statements include the financial data of the following entities.

Housing Authority — This authority, which is a legally separate entity, is governed by a quasi-judicial board appointed by the
Governor. It was created in 1975 to facilitate the availability of decent, safe, and sanitary housing to persons and families of
lower income. The board issues negotiable notes and bonds to fulfill its purposes. The total amount of notes and bonds
outstanding at any time may not exceed $1.5 billion. Neither the faith and credit nor taxing power of the State of Montana
may be pledged for the amounts so issued. The authority is audited annually by the State’s Legislative Audit Division. The
report is issued under separate cover and available at 301 South Park, Room 240, PO Box 200528, Helena, MT 59620-0528.

Facilities Finance Authority — This authority, which is a legally separate entity, is governed by a quasi-judicial board
appointed by the Governor with the advice and consent of the Senate. The authority assists all eligible, non-profit Montana
health care and other community-based service providers to obtain and maintain access to the broadest range of low-cost
capital financing as possible. The board issues revenue bonds to fulfill its purposes. Neither the faith and credit nor taxing
power of the State of Montana may be pledged for the amounts so issued. Individual audit reports are issued every two years
by the State’s Legislative Audit Division. The report is issued under separate cover and available at 2401 Colonial Drive, 3™
Floor, PO Box 200506, Helena, MT 59620-0506.

Montana State Fund (New Fund and Old Fund) - Though reported in separate columns, The Montana State Fund (New Fund)
and the State Fund (Old Fund) are one legally separate entity, thus a single component unit with separate accounting funds.
State Fund is a nonprofit, independent public corporation governed by a board of directors appointed by the Governor. State
Fund is audited annually by the State’s Legislative Audit Division. The report is issued under separate cover and available at
855 Front Street, Helena, MT 59604.

New Fund provides workers compensation insurance for claims incurred after June 30, 1990, and is financed by member
(employer) premiums. The New Fund is audited annually by the State’s Legislative Audit Division. The report is issued
under separate cover and available at 855 Front Street, Helena, MT 59604.

Old Fund covers worker compensation claims that were incurred before July 1, 1990. Administrative operations and budgets

may be reviewed by the Governor and the Legislature, but they have no authority over budgets or costs. In any fiscal